
 
1 
 

 
 

Notice of a meeting of 
Cabinet 

 
Tuesday, 16 February 2021 

6.00 pm 
Virtual WEBEX video conference via YouTube - 

https://www.youtube.com/user/cheltenhamborough 
 

Membership 

Councillors: Rowena Hay, Victoria Atherstone, Flo Clucas, Chris Coleman, 
Alex Hegenbarth, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, Andrew McKinlay and 
Max Wilkinson 

 

Agenda  
    

  SECTION 1 : PROCEDURAL MATTERS  
    

1.   APOLOGIES  
    

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
    

3.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
Minutes of last meeting held on 26th January 

(Pages 
3 - 8) 

    

4.   PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
These must be received no later than 12 noon on 
Wednesday 10th February. 

 

    

  SECTION 2 :THE COUNCIL   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council 

on this occasion 
 

    

  SECTION 3 : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on this occasion 
 

    
  SECTION 4 : OTHER COMMITTEES   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by other 

Committees on this occasion 
 

    
  SECTION 5 : REPORTS FROM CABINET MEMBERS 

AND/OR OFFICERS 
 

    

5.   REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES 
Report of the Cabinet Member Cyber and Safety 

(Pages 
9 - 16) 



    

 
2 
 

    
6.   KIOSK OPPORTUNITIES - CONSIDERATION OF 

OBJECTIONS 
Report of the Cabinet Member Finance and Assets 

(Pages 
17 - 26) 

    

7.   BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2020/21 - POSITION 
AS AT DECEMBER 2020 
Report of the Cabinet Member Finance and Assets 

(Pages 
27 - 42) 

    

8.   FINAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET PROPOSALS 2022 
Report of the Cabinet Member Finance and Assets to follow 

 

    
9.   FINAL HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) 2022 - 

REVISED BUDGET 2021 
Report of the Cabinet Member Finance and Assets to follow 

 

    
  SECTION 6 : BRIEFING SESSION   
   Leader and Cabinet Members  

    

10.   BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS  
    

  SECTION 7 : DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS   
  Member decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting  

    
  SECTION 8 : ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE LEADER 

DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A 
DECISION 

 

    
 

Contact Officer:  Harry Mayo, Democracy Officer, 01242 264211 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 

mailto:democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk


 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on. Tuesday, 16 February 2021 

 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 26th January, 2021 

6.00  - 6.50 pm 
 

Attendees 

Councillors: Rowena Hay (Leader of the Council), Flo Clucas (Cabinet 
Member Healthy Lifestyles), Chris Coleman (Cabinet Member 
Clean and Green Environment), Alex Hegenbarth (Cabinet 
Member Corporate Services), Peter Jeffries (Cabinet Member 
Housing), Steve Jordan (Cabinet Member Finance and Assets), 
Andrew McKinlay (Cabinet Member Cyber and Safety) and 
Max Wilkinson (Cabinet Member Climate and Communities) 

Also in attendance:  Gareth Edmundson, Paul Jones, Darren Knight, Tim Atkins, 
Sarah Farooqi, Steve Slater, Judy Hibbert 

 

Minutes 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
Cllr. Atherstone sent apologies. 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were none. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
The Cabinet Member Finance and Assets raised a point of accuracy regarding 

the minutes of the meeting held on 22nd December 2020. Regarding his briefing 

in item 14, he suggested that it be made clearer that the urgent decision to 

refurbish part of the Municipal Offices had been taken by an officer, and that he 

had reported it to Cabinet as required by the council’s constitution. He also 

added that it had been Gloucester City Council who had agreed the package of 

investment in the airport company. Cllr. Wilkinson noted that in his briefing in 

the same item, ‘Norton’ should have read ‘Naunton’. 

Subject to these changes, the minutes of the 22nd December meeting were 

approved as a correct record. 

 

4. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
Two public questions were received from Mr Dave Phillips, both for the Cabinet 

Member Finance and Assets. The Cabinet Member’s responses were taken as 

read as the questioner was not present at the meeting. 

 

5. DRAFT UPDATED CORPORATE COMPLAINTS AND FEEDBACK POLICY 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services presented the report, noting that while 

CBC was committed to providing excellent customer service, there would 

always be times when those contacting us would not be completely satisfied. 

Page 3
Agenda Item 3



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 16 February 2021 

 

The corporate complaints and feedback policy was last reviewed 10 years ago, 

and it was important to update it to account for the latest guidance. 

The main change in the draft updated policy was to move from a three-stage 

process to a two-stage process, as favoured by the Local Government and 

Social Care Ombudsman. This approach would seek to be dynamic and 

flexible, with each complaint investigated on its own merit. He acknowledged 

that complaints can be a useful barometer of public opinion and an early 

warning of problems within the system, and thanked Judy Hibbert for her work 

on the report. 

The Leader of the Council added that it was important to clarify that the two 

stages of the updated process were independent of one another. 

The Leader moved to a vote, where it was unanimously: 

RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The updated draft Corporate Complaints and Feedback Policy be 
adopted; 

2. Key Performance information be regularly reported using the 
Clearview reporting system with an annual report to Overview and 
Scrutiny and the Executive Leadership team together with a 
summary of learning; 

3. Authority be delegated to the Customer Services Manager, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services, in 
respect of future updates to this policy. 

 

6. STRATEGIC HOUSING REVIEW 
The Cabinet Member Housing presented the report, noting its relevance to the 

priorities laid out in the council’s Place Vision, Corporate Plan and Recovery 

Strategy, all of which sought to have a transformational and positive impact for 

everyone in the borough. Key aims for the future included solidifying 

Cheltenham’s position as the cyber capital of the UK, the Golden Valley 

development delivering new businesses, housing and jobs, as well as the goal 

of net carbon zero by 2030 and the £180m investment in providing new and 

affordable homes. 

He stressed the importance of housing services as a fundamental part of this 

agenda. With this in mind, an independent housing service review was 

undertaken to ensure that the council was best placed to meet its current and 

future ambitions. The review concluded that Cheltenham Borough Homes 

(CBH) should be retained as an Arms-Length Management Organisation 

(ALMO) and that an ambitious programme should be undertaken to evolve and 

strengthen the partnership between CBC and CBH in the future. 

He acknowledged the impact of the Covid crisis on communities, but noted that 

housing services in Cheltenham continued to be strong and resilient. The report 

included an updated management agreement and business plan, aiming for a 

lasting positive impact and a resilient, inclusive and sustained recovery from 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 16 February 2021 

 

Covid-19. He thanked officers involved for their part in what was at heart an 

honest and constructive conversation, and asked members to endorse the 

report. 

Gareth Edmundson, Chief Executive, added his thanks to CBH for their 

continuing partnership, particularly in terms of how they had identified areas of 

improvement to constructively build on. He emphasised the importance of 

engaging partners, stakeholders, tenants and customers in decision-making 

processes, and the need to identify efficiencies and give themselves a genuine 

choice of options for either savings or future investment. The aim was for the 

council to look back in 5-10 years and see that the review was a key step in 

tackling future challenges. 

Steve Slater (Cheltenham Borough Homes) echoed the Chief Executive’s 

words, describing it as a comprehensive and rewarding review. He stressed the 

importance of the CBC-CBH partnership and the need to push on in the future 

to continue delivering for all those concerned. 

The Cabinet Member Healthy Lifestyles thanked officers and the Cabinet 

Member Housing for their efforts in producing a significant piece of work, and 

asked whether the government’s Social Housing White Paper would be 

restrictive or beneficial. SS responded that they had looked closely at all its 

requirements, and believed they could work with these and build on them. He 

added that the council’s role would be particularly important, with a clear trend 

towards more responsibility being put in the hands of local authorities since 

Grenfell. It was important to give tenants support and reassurance. 

The Cabinet Member Finance and Assets added that he fully supported the 

report, and that CBH had been a reliable and valuable partner over the years. 

The Cabinet Member Cyber and Safety added that the report was very well-

timed, and not just because of Covid. Housing services would be an integral 

part of the Golden Valley development, and it was important to know that the 

council’s partners were up to the job of delivering this at a high standard. 

The Leader added that this was just the start of a long journey, and one part of 

a pioneering agenda. Housebuilding commitments were planned long into the 

future. 

The Leader moved to a vote, where it was unanimously: 

RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Independent Strategic Housing Review Report provided by 
Campbell Tickell (Appendix 2) be noted; 

2. The key recommendation within the Campbell Tickell report to 
retain Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH) as the Arms-length 
Management Organisation (ALMO) as the model of housing service 
delivery for Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC) be agreed; 

3. Authority be delegated to the Managing Director for Place and 
Growth in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and 
CBH to review and establish appropriate governance for an 
ambitious transformation programme that will seek to:  

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 16 February 2021 

 

a. Implement identified opportunities within the Campbell 
Tickell Report and subsequently by CBC and CBH that will 
evolve and strengthen the partnership between the Council 
and the ALMO to deliver improved outcomes for CBH 
tenants, customers and Cheltenham’s communities;  

b. Deliver annual efficiencies for reinvestment and/or savings 
of up to £487K by the end of the financial year 2023/24 while 
requiring £175K of transformation costs.  

4. Authority be delegated to the Managing Director for Place and 
Growth in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing to 
update the current CBH Management Agreement, HRA Business 
Plan and associated documents to:  

a. Deliver a strong partnership that enables the delivery of 
shared corporate priorities and a high quality service; 

b. Support the implementation of identified opportunities and 
efficiencies set out within the CT report and identified by 
CBC/CBH; 

c. Support the implementation of the CBH Board Effectiveness 
review; 

d. Allow for appropriate monitoring of delivery against 
priorities and milestones. 

 

7. BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS 
The Cabinet Member Climate and Communities reported that the Cheltenham 

Zero conferences had been a huge success earlier in the month. The 

conferences were facilitated by the council and administered by its partners at 

Vision 21, and incorporated independent experts on a wide range of topics from 

energy and transport to biodiversity. He thanked everyone who gave their time 

to help out, and hoped that the partnerships and alliances formed would be built 

on in the future. 

The Cabinet Member Corporate Services thanked all officers and staff for their 

hard work in a difficult situation, adding that the council would do all it could to 

support them. The Leader echoed this 

The Cabinet Member Healthy Lifestyles reported that the Burrows Field 

development was going ahead. Over the next two years, the field would be 

enhanced to benefit local people and Leckhampton Rovers Football Club. She 

thanked all the officers involved in delivering this valuable project. 

The Cabinet Member Finance and Assets added that the budget consultation 

process was drawing to a close, with the deadline a couple of days after the 

meeting. 

 

Decisions of Cabinet Members 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 16 February 2021 

 

Six Cabinet Member Decisions had been taken since the last meeting. 
 
Cabinet Member Finance and Assets (Cllr Jordan) 
22nd December: 
Provision of a reactive and planned maintenance service for the door entry 
systems within the domestic housing stock together with a replacement key fob 
management system 
 
Cabinet Member Finance and Assets (Cllr Jordan) 
23rd December 
Shareholder Decision-Appointment to the role of Managing Director of 
Gloucestershire Airport Limited (GAL). 
 
Cabinet Member Finance and Assets (Cllr Jordan) 
20th January 
To extend the Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme to 31 March 2021. 
 
Cabinet Member Housing (Cllr Jeffries) 
19th January 
Award of contract to design and deliver the new build housing scheme at 320 
Swindon Road, Cheltenham. 
 
Cabinet Member Housing (Cllr Jeffries) 
19th January 
To approve changes to the Local Lettings Plan for the Veteran housing scheme 
at Jupiter House, Swindon Rd, Cheltenham (incorporating 6 and 8 Brunswick 
Street). 
 
Cabinet Member Healthy Lifestyles (Cllr Clucas) 
20th January 
To update the CBC volunteer policy with information on one-off volunteering. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Chairman 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$2vlyr45i.docx Page 1 of 6 Last updated 02 February 2021 

 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

Cabinet – 16 February 2021 

Review of Hackney Carriage Fares 

 

Accountable member Councillor Andrew McKinlay, Cabinet Member for Cyber & Safety 

Accountable officer Mike Redman, Director of Environment 

Ward(s) affected All 

Key/Significant 
Decision 

Yes  

Executive summary Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
permits the authority to set fares for hackney carriage, or taxi, vehicles 
licensed by it. 

A review has been undertaken and this report seeks approval from Cabinet 
to revise the current approved fares in accordance with this report. 
 

Recommendations Cabinet is recommended to: 

1. Approve a 2% increase in the maximum fares charged by a 
Cheltenham licensed hackney carriage; and  

2. Delegate authority to the Licensing Team Leader to carry out the 
necessary advertising requirements to comply with section 65 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; and  

3. Subject to there being no substantive amendments being made 
following consultation, delegate authority to the Director of 
Environment to adopt the proposed fares. 

 

Page 9
Agenda Item 5



 

   

$2vlyr45i.docx Page 2 of 6 Last updated 02 February 2021 

 

Financial implications There are no direct financial implications to this paper apart from the costs 
of the consultation which cannot be avoided. These costs are minimal and 
can be covered by current budgets. 

Contact officer: Jon Whitlock, Jon.Whitlock@publicagroup.uk 

Legal implications As outlined in the report. 

Contact officer:  Vikki Fennell, Vikki.Fennell@tewkesbury.gov.uk 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications arising from this report. 

Contact officer: Clare Jones, clare.jones@publicagroup.uk 

Key risks As identified in Appendix 1 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

N/A 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

N/A 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

N/A 

Contact officer:   Dominic.Stead@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 10



 

   

$2vlyr45i.docx Page 3 of 6 Last updated 02 February 2021 

 

1. Background 

1.1 Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 permits the council to 
set the maximum fares for hackney carriage vehicles licensed by it.  

1.2 The last hackney carriage fare review was undertaken in 2017 when Cabinet approved a 6% 
increase based on the council’s adopted fare formula. 

1.3 A further review of hackney carriage fares has been undertaken and this report seeks approval 
from Cabinet to revise the current fare table for hackney carriage vehicles. 

2. Methodology - Fares linked to inflation 

2.1 In February 2019, Cabinet approved a fare setting methodology linked to inflation.  Under this 
approach, the current fare level will be used as a baseline and the percentage change in the rate 
of inflation or deflation be applied to determine the revised maximum fares for Cheltenham 
licensed hackney carriages. 

3. Rate of inflation 2019 

3.1 According to the Office of National Statistics, the average rate of inflation in 2019 was 1.7%.  For 
the purpose of setting maximum fares for Cheltenham licensed hackney carriages, this number 
will be rounded to 2% for the sake of rounding of the calculations on the fare card.  The 0.3% 
rounding is too small to make a real tangible difference to the maximum fares. 

4. Reasons for recommendations 

4.1 To ensure the maximum fares chargeable reflect the costs which will be incurred by a good 
owner-driver who spends whatever is necessary to operate and maintain his hackney carriage to 
a high standard. 

5. Adoption  

5.1 Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 prescribes that the 
council must consult if it proposes to set or vary hackney carriage fares. 

5.2 It must do so by publishing a notice in a local newspaper setting out the variation and specifying a 
period and means of objecting. The specified period cannot be less than 14 days. 

5.3 If no objections are made, or any made are withdrawn, the proposed fares will take effect on the 
specified date. However, if objections are made and not withdrawn, the council must set a further 
date, not later than two months after the initial date, on which the proposed fares shall come into 
force with or without modifications as decided after consideration of any objections. 

6. Alternative options considered 

6.1 The council can decide not to increase hackney carriage fares as part of this review although this 
option is not considered desirable as it would result in an owner-driver not being able to fully 
recover the costs which will be incurred by them to operate and maintain their hackney carriage to 
a high standard. 

Page 11



 

   

$2vlyr45i.docx Page 4 of 6 Last updated 02 February 2021 

 

Report author Contact officer: Louis Krog, louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 

2. Proposed revised fare card 

Background information 1. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

2. Cheltenham Borough Council 2019 hackney carriage fares 

 

Page 12



 

   

$2vlyr45i.docx Page 5 of 6 Last updated 02 February 2021 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to risk 
register 

 If the council decides 
not to 
approve the 
recommended increase 
in fares, licence holders 
will be unable to 
recover their costs and 
earn a proper living, 
which could result in 
the council being 
legally challenged 
which could adversely 
affect the council’s 
reputation. 
 

Director of 
Environment 

Jan 
21 

2 2 4 Reduce Adopt 
recommendations  

 Licensing 
Team 
Leader 

If the council 
decides not to 
approve the 
recommended 
increase in 
fares, licence 
holders will be 
unable to 
recover their 
costs and 
earn a proper 
living, which 
could result in 
the council 
being legally 
challenged 
which could 
adversely 
affect the 
council’s 
reputation. 
 

 If the council does not 
have a proposed basis 
for calculating hackney 
carriage fares, the 
council may be unable 
to defend a legal 
challenge on the fares 
set and the method 
used. 

Director of 
Environment 

Jan 
21 

3 2 6 Reduce Adopt 
recommendations 

 Licensing 
Team 
Leader 

If the council 
does not have 
a proposed 
basis for 
calculating 
hackney 
carriage fares, 
the council 
may be 
unable to 
defend a legal 

P
age 13



 

   

$2vlyr45i.docx Page 6 of 6 Last updated 02 February 2021 

 

challenge on 
the fares set 
and the 
method used. 
 

Explanatory notes 

Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 

Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  

(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 

Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 

 

 

P
age 14



CHELTENHAM

CURRENT TARIFF

Name : Name : Name :

Date: 01/02/2019 Date: 01/02/2019 Date: 01/02/2019

Soiling charge: £50.00 Soiling charge: £50.00 Soiling charge: £50.00

Wait: 50 (secs) Wait: 50 (secs) 50 (secs)

Flag fall: £3.10 A Flag fall: £3.80 A Flag fall: £5.30 A

Initial yardage: 251 B Initial yardage: 201 B Initial yardage: 143 B

Unit  thereafter: 251 C Unit  thereafter: 201 Unit  thereafter: 143 C

Price unit : 0.3  Price unit : 0.3 D Price unit : 0.3

Initial Waiting Time (secs): 50 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 50  Initial Waiting Time (secs): 50

Jan-20

Name : Name : Name :

Soiling charge: £50.00 Soiling charge: £50.00 Soiling charge: £50.00

Wait: 50 (secs) Wait: 50 (secs) Wait: 50 (secs)

Flag fall: £3.15 A Flag fall: £3.85 A Flag fall: £5.35 A

Initial yardage: 251 B Initial yardage: 201 B Initial yardage: 143 B

Unit  thereafter: 251 C Unit  thereafter: 201 C Unit  thereafter: 143 C

Price unit : 0.31 D Price unit : 0.31 D Price unit : 0.31 D

Initial Waiting Time (secs): Initial Waiting Time (secs): Initial Waiting Time (secs):

Distance

(miles) Current Proposed % Change Current Proposed % Change Current Proposed % Change

Flag £3.10 £3.15 1.61% £3.80 £3.85 1.32% £5.30 £5.35 0.94%

1 £5.20 £5.32 2.31% £6.20 £6.33 2.10% £8.90 £9.07 1.91%

2 £7.30 £7.49 2.60% £8.90 £9.12 2.47% £12.50 £12.79 2.32%

3 £9.40 £9.66 2.77% £11.60 £11.91 2.67% £16.10 £16.51 2.55%

4 £11.50 £11.83 2.87% £14.30 £14.70 2.80% £20.00 £20.54 2.70%

5 £13.60 £14.00 2.94% £16.70 £17.18 2.87% £23.60 £24.26 2.80%

6 £15.70 £16.17 2.99% £19.40 £19.97 2.94% £27.20 £27.98 2.87%

7 £17.80 £18.34 3.03% £22.10 £22.76 2.99% £31.10 £32.01 2.93%

8 £19.90 £20.51 3.07% £24.80 £25.55 3.02% £34.70 £35.73 2.97%

9 £22.00 £22.68 3.09% £27.20 £28.03 3.05% £38.30 £39.45 3.00%

10 £24.10 £24.85 3.11% £29.90 £30.82 3.08% £42.20 £43.48 3.03%

Average +/- % 2.76% 2.66% 2.55%

TARIFF 1 TARIFF 2 TARIFF 3

TARIFF 3TARIFF 1 TARIFF 2

TARIFF 1 TARIFF 2 TARIFF 3

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$hrzipi1k.docx Page 1 of 8 Last updated 05 February 2021 

 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

Council/Cabinet – 16th February 2021 

Kiosk opportunities in the Parks 

Accountable member Cllr Steve Jordan – Cabinet Member of Finance and Assets 

Accountable officer Dominic Stead – Head of Property and Asset Management 

Ward(s) affected Various:  

Beeches Playing Field – Charlton Kings Ward.  

Burrows Playing Field – Leckhampton Ward.  

Key/Significant 
Decision 

No 

Executive summary In line with the Cabinet report dated 22nd December 2020 ‘Kiosk opportunities 
in the Parks’ to proceed as proposed with the two ‘tenancy at wills’ (TAW’s) 
in Burrows and Beeches Playing field.  
 
The Council are  required to advertise its intention to dispose of public open 
space  under S123 of the Local Government Act 1972 and consider any 
objections received.  
 
A disposal in this case constitutes a tenancy at will. The tenancy at will is 
required for the purpose of locating a refreshment kiosk and a seating area at 
Burrows and Beeches Playing field and is to be for a period of up to nine 
months. 
 
The Council are currently looking to  offer the following: 

No. Name Status

  

Length of term Agreement type 

1. Beeches Trial Upto 9 months Tenancy at Will 

2. Burrows Trial Upto 9 months Tenancy at Will 

 

Recommendations  

1. That Cabinet considers the objections received to the S123 Notices 
to date.  

2. Cabinet delegates authority to the Executive Director of Finance and 
Assets in consultation with the Cabinet Member Finance and Assets 
and the Borough Solicitor to consider any further objections received 
to the s.123 notices for the remainder of the consultation period from 
the Cabinet date of 16 February 2021 to and including the 18 
February 2021, and (subject to consideration of such objections) to 
authorise the entering into of one or both of the proposed Tenancies 
at Will. 

 
 

Page 17
Agenda Item 6



 

   

$hrzipi1k.docx Page 2 of 8 Last updated 05 February 2021 

 

Financial implications N/A 

Legal implications Before disposing of land held as public open space, the Council has a 
statutory duty to advertise its disposal for two consecutive weeks in a 
newspaper circulating in the area, and to consider objections. 

The duty to consider objections is a duty to consider objections relevant to 
the use of the land as public open space; for example, objections to the 
grant of the facility to a service provider other than the objector’s preferred 
service provider would not be a relevant objection in this context. 

The term “dispose” includes a lease of any length, and tenancies including 
tenancies at will, but does not include licences.  

The principal differences between a lease, tenancy and licence (all terms 
used within the report) is briefly as follows: 

 A lease is often intended at the outset to be for a longer term than 
a tenancy, and often commences with a fixed term of several 
years. 

 A tenancy is usually viewed as being of shorter duration than a 
lease, although in practice either can continue indefinitely. A 
tenancy at will, however, is not for a fixed duration (however short) 
and only continues for as long as the landlord “wills” it; it can be 
terminated without reason at any time, although it is usually 
courteous to give a few days’ notice.  

 A licensee occupies land or property with the permission of the 
owner; it is a lesser right than that under a lease or tenancy. 

 An occupier under a lease or tenancy (including a tenancy at will) 
has the right to exclude all others from those premises, including 
the landlord (except for those instances where the landlord has 
retained the right to enter). A tenancy or lease is a legal right to 
occupy the land exclusively, and this right survives the sale by the 
landlord to another landlord: the occupiers’ right against the original 
landlord transfers to the new landlord 

 The occupier under a licence is not entitled to exclude third parties, 
whether the owner or anyone else expressly or impliedly authorised 
by the owner to occupy the land. The right is a personal, 
contractual right between the owner and the occupier, not a legal 
right to the land. The licence terminates automatically if the owner 
disposes of the land.  

There are a number of other differences, but the above are the significant 
differences for the purposes of this report. 

There may be covenants or other restrictions on the title to the respective 
areas of land which might impact on their proposed use. The title in each 
case would have to be investigated before expressions of interest were 
invited. 

Contact officer: One Legal, legal.services@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 
272691 

Page 18



 

   

$hrzipi1k.docx Page 3 of 8 Last updated 05 February 2021 

 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

N/A 

Key risks The Council need to ensure that we are being fair and market the 
opportunities. Vendors cannot be territorial and have to accept that 
everyone has the same opportunity set out in the scope (see background 
document). The Council have to go with the best fit for the park and the 
community and there are risks associated with this stance.   

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Our preference will be that our vendors are local and that they will source 
local produce, and work with other local businesses to offer optimum 
services and we will be looking for reference to this in their bid submission.  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

 In line with the Waste Framework Directive 2008/98/EC and the council’s 

commitment to a net zero carbon council and borough by 2030 we would 

expect a clear waste and recycling policy with clear processes in place 

from all vendors. 

 

Where possible we will be seeking for vendors to demonstrate that they 

have delivered on recycling and carbon neutrality in an established 

practice. Or that there is a clear vision and drive to recycle (and other 

green incentives) in order to secure the opportunity. We will seek to 

cement their own vision into the legal agreement to ensure that their vision 

is delivered.  

 

The Council will work with Friends of Groups, Parish Councils and our 

partners such as Ubico to maximize what we can do in-terms of green 

incentives. We are looking at the provision of recycling bins throughout our 

parks and we look at ways to limit the use of generators, and the provision 

of bark chippings and other natural products to help tackle mud.  

Property/Asset 
Implications 

Contact officer: Dominic.Stead@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 19



 

   

$hrzipi1k.docx Page 4 of 8 Last updated 05 February 2021 

 

1. Background 

1.1 Members of the public wrote to the parks team suggesting that the Council could place mobile 
kiosk units in our parks. The parks team have been instrumental in responding to public demand 
and driving this initiative forward.  We currently have two trials occurring at Hatherley Park and at 
Burrows Playing Field. The popularity of these trials and overwhelming support and positive 
feedback from the community made us consider extending what we currently have in place. 

1.2 It is proposed that all new arrangements be able to commence from 1st March 2021, after 
advertising the opportunities and contacting those people that have already been in touch. There 
are a number of considerations that each vendor will have to work through, which we have 
complied in-line with Councils objectives, being sympathetic to the parks and locations on offer 
and other statutory requirements such as planning and street licensing. A vendor will have to be 
very motivated to be selected to go forward.  

1.3 In relation to Burrows and Beeches Playing Fields specifically, it is proposed that tenancies would 
commence from the 1st March 2021 and initially we are proposing to offer a Tenancy at Will for up 
to 9 months. However, due to the statutes that govern our open spaces the Council are not able 
to consider a tenancy of this nature without first advertising the Council’s  intention to dispose via 
a S123 Notice, as a tenancy at will  is considered a disposal. Appendix 2 – S123 Notice. 

1.4 To comply with its statutory obligations, the Council advertised the proposed disposal in a 
newspaper circulating in the area for two consecutive weeks, and opened consultation for 
comments and objections up to 18th February. 

1.5 A kiosk in the Burrows may be disrupted due to the improvement scheme recently secured for the  
playing field. For this reason, a further short tenancy is being considered.  

1.6 Unlike Burrows we are in early days in relation to the other opportunities and these should be 
trialled before seeking something more permanent, especially in new locations. A lease is not 
appropriate for Beeches, at this time. We want to ensure that the opportunities work hand in hand 
with the communities and we need to be aware of any potential adverse impacts and look to 
mitigate these before looking at something more permanent if appropriate and supported.  

2. Reasons for recommendations 

2.1 The Covid Lockdowns and restrictions have created an unprecedented surge in the use of our 
parks and outdoor spaces. This has put an additional strain on our park services and Friends of 
Groups (where they exist).  

2.2 The kiosks allow us to alleviate some issues, such as the increased littering and antisocial 
behaviour that result from increased park usage. The kiosks help to maintain their area and 
manage, collect and recycle litter, while their presence helps to deter antisocial behaviour. 

2.3 The commercial benefits are also clear, and the kiosks have been generally very well received, as 
seen in the comments that we have received that were captured by the December Cabinet report. 
The general public love the freedom of a park, especially when their normal recreational options 
are closed and when they can also grab a coffee.  

2.4 Also, many businesses have had to reinvent themselves and seek ways to innovatively save 
themselves from collapse. The trials have provided invaluable opportunities to businesses that 
have had to completely reassess what they do. They are local and they have employed local 
people or sourced local produce to ensure that their offering has truly been about the community.  

2.5 We recognise that change is not always welcome, and that there may be concerns and objections 
raised. We will continue to address these, while acknowledging that the overwhelming majority of 

Page 20



 

   

$hrzipi1k.docx Page 5 of 8 Last updated 05 February 2021 

 

feedback so far has been positive. 

3. Alternative options considered 

3.1 Do nothing. Doing nothing would limit the extent to which can reinvest income in services and 
increase the financial pressures that the council is already facing. 

3.2 Continue with trials. We are continuing with trials where we feel it is appropriate and looking for 
permanence where there is an opportunity and the majority of public opinion is in support.   

3.3 Lease more space out for kiosks. We don’t want to rush into offering leases as these are more 
permanent, we want to be balanced and considered in our approach, this is a new opportunity, 
but a reactive one in light of the pandemic and the sheer volumes of people now utilising our 
outdoor spaces. We need to understand and mitigate any adverse impacts and we need to know 
that the majority of the community are in support.  

4. How this initiative contributes to the corporate plan 

4.1 The priorities outlined in the council’s Place Vision, including that the borough should be a place 
where everyone can thrive, are at the heart of what we are proposing. The kiosks further enhance 
valuable public spaces for people to enjoy, so all our communities can benefit.  

4.2 We are being commercially focused and become financially self-sufficient, to ensure we continue 
to achieve value for money. We are making appropriate adjustments to ensure that a balance is 
maintained.  

4.3 We will work to ensure that we encourage equal collaboration, and we are listening to what our 
communities are saying to use and what they are feeding back. We are doing what we feel is 
appropriate. 

5. Consultation and feedback 

5.1 Cabinet Report dated 22nd December 2020.  

5.2 Ward members (all wards where a kiosk will be placed from 1st March) where they have 
responded, are in support.  

5.3 Parish Councils (again those applicable to those kiosks from the 1st March) where they have 
responded are in support. Especially the Charlton Kings (for the Beeches) and Leckhampton 
parishes.  

5.4 Friends of Groups, where they exist have responded and are in support.  

5.5 S123 Notice responses in writing have been summarised in Appendix 2 

5.6 Asset Management Working group are in support, but would be keen that the kiosks focus on 
offering the opportunity to people who live in our Borough. 

5.7 Parks and Green Spaces are championing the offer and currently work with the vendors who are 
trialling the offer to enhance and maximise the opportunity.  

5.8 Cabinet Member leads are in support.   

6. Performance management –monitoring and review 

6.1 The ‘new’ opportunities are being offered on a trial basis. Parks and Gardens will continue to work 

Page 21



 

   

$hrzipi1k.docx Page 6 of 8 Last updated 05 February 2021 

 

closely with these vendors and will seek to mitigate any adverse impacts.  

6.2 Based on the trials and lessons learned we will capture more specific requirements of the kiosk 
vendors within the agreements. 

6.3 We will continue to monitor and review all of those opportunities, and between the parks team and 
the property team, will seek the optimum solutions to mitigate issues as they arise.  

6.4 We will listen and respond (where appropriate) to concerns raised. We will do our best to manage 
everyone expectations, this is a new venture for the Council and we are learning as we go.  

Report author Contact officer: Abigail Marshall, 
Abigail.marshall@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264240 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 

2. Copy of the S123 Notice  

3. Tally of objections (if received) 

Background information 1. Cabinet report, 22nd December 2020 – Kiosk Opportunities in the 
Parks  

 

Page 22

mailto:Abigail.marshall@cheltenham.gov.uk


 

   

$hrzipi1k.docx Page 7 of 8 Last updated 05 February 2021 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 There could be breakdowns 
in communication between 
the vendor and the Council. 

DS 02/12 3 2 6 Accept Make expectations clear 
from the outset. Forge a 
strong workable 
professional relationship.  

1st 
March 
2021 

AM / WS  

 There may be backlash if the 
same vendor is not 
successful in securing future 
opportunities and they may 
seek to discredit the Council.  

DS 02/12 3 4 12 Accept Set out the Councils 
objectives and criteria 
from the outset. We 
cannot favour one 
vendor over denying 
another the opportunity if 
they are able to 
adequately demonstrate 
they are the best option.  

1st 
March 
2021 

AM / WS  

 If vendors are investing 
serious time and money to 
try to win the opportunity and 
then fail to secure it, they 
could seek to discredit the 
council. 

DS 02/12 1 3 3 Accept We are in difficult times, 
but the council need to 
find the best fit for the 
opportunity. Being an 
established vendor will 
help both parties, as it 
will provide the most 
knowledgeable 
considered approach. 

1st 
March 
2021 

AM / WS  

 If the community feel 
aggrieved and believe that 
the kiosk is not working, then 
we need to reassess what 
we are doing.  

DS 02/12  2 4 8 Manage 
and 
reduce 

Work with our local 
representatives to 
capture and manage 
people’s concerns and 
make any appropriate 
adjustments.  

1st 
March 
2021 

AM/ WS  

            

 

 

P
age 23



 

   

$hrzipi1k.docx Page 8 of 8 Last updated 05 February 2021 

 

Explanatory notes 

Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 

Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  

(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 

Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 

 

 
 

P
age 24



 

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
LISTED BUILDINGS AND BUILDINGS IN 

CONSERVATION AREAS 
LEGISLATION. APPLICATIONS RECEIVED

20/02143/FUL  3 St Annes Road, Cheltenham Erection of 
cabin in existing courtyard to create an outdoor room 
21/00111/FUL  23 Eldorado Crescent, Cheltenham 
Alteration to convert garage to study with replacement 
doors/windows to front elevation Single storey extension to 
side to extend kitchen 
21/00102/LBC  Flat 8, 100 Bath Road, Cheltenham 
Restoration of three existing timber sash windows 
21/00133/FUL  47 Cudnall Street, Charlton Kings, 
Cheltenham Renovation and alterations of existing rear 
wing (kitchen/utility) 
21/00116/FUL  Flat 2, 23 St Stephens Road, Cheltenham 
Demolition of existing detached garage and erection of 
single storey side and rear extension 
21/00132/FUL  34 Suffolk Parade, Cheltenham 
21/00132/LBC  Conversion of existing basement into 
one self-contained apartment with insertion of stallriser 
windows at ground floor (pavement) level and conversion 
of existing first and second floor apartment into two self-
contained apartments 
21/00113/FUL  95 London Road, Cheltenham 
21/00113/LBC  Renovation and conversion of existing 
basement to form a separate dwelling (revised scheme) 
21/00096/FUL  19 New Street, Cheltenham Demolish 
existing outbuilding and erect 2no. one bedroom flats and 
associated cycle and bin stores 
21/00008/FUL  74 Painswick Road, Cheltenham Erection 
of frear glass veranda 
21/00046/LBC  Rowanfield ,17 Wellington Square, 
Cheltenham Regularisation boiler and flue to replace 
existing boiler and flue 
21/00120/FUL  3 Rotunda Terrace, Montpellier Street, 
Cheltenham 
21/00120/LBC  Conversion of the existing retail showroom 
at first floor into a self-contained flat, minor alterations to 
the existing flat at second floor. 
21/00105/FUL  18 Commercial Street, Cheltenham 
Replacement of existing ground floor french doors 
and window at the rear of the property with anthracite 
aluminium bi-fold doors. 
21/00100/FUL  5 Argyll Road, Cheltenham Dormer to rear 
and skylights to front roof slope 
21/00068/LBC  Flat 2, 51 St Georges Road, Cheltenham 
Internal alterations 
21/00082/FUL  67 Moorend Road, Cheltenham Single 
storey side extension
 
Full details of the applications may be inspected during 
normal office hours in the main reception, MUNICIPAL 
OFFICES, CHELTENHAM or viewed and commented 
online at www.cheltenham.gov.uk/publicaccess during the 
period of 21 days, beginning with the date of the publication 
of this notice. Alternatively free access to the internet can 
be booked at your local library. 
Date 28th January 2021

 

 

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 
1972 SECTION 123(1), (2A)

LAND AT BEECHES PLAYING FIELD, 
ON THE NORTH EAST SIDE OF 

BEECHES ROAD, CHARLTON KINGS, 
CHELTENHAM, GLOUCESTERSHIRE

DISPOSAL OF OPEN SPACE BY 
WAY OF TENANCY AT WILL

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Cheltenham Borough 
Council intends to dispose of land having an area of 
approximately 78.3 square metres at Beeches Playing 
Field, on the north east side of Beeches Road, Charlton 
Kings, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire (which forms part of 
an open space) by way of the grant of a Tenancy at Will for 
a term of up to 9 months. The intention to grant a Tenancy 
at Will is for the purpose of locating a kiosk for the sale of 
refreshments and for a seating area. 
A plan showing the land edged red can be requested by 
emailing Abigail.marshall@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Objections to the intended disposal must be made in 
writing and addressed to the Council Solicitor, One Legal, 
Tewkesbury Borough Council, Public Services Sector, 
Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury, Gloucestershire GL20 5TT 
(ref. KD/11282) to be received by no later than 18 February 
2021. 
28 January 2021 
Sara J. Freckleton 
Council Solicitor 
One Legal 
Tewkesbury Borough Council 
Public Services Sector 
Gloucester Road 
Tewkesbury 
Gloucestershire GL20 5TT

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 

Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
For information purposes, you are advised that the development 
affects the setting of a Scheduled Ancient Monument and the setting 
of a Listed Building.

Variation of condition 3 (Scope of development) relating to 
planning consent 18/0052/GLR3MJ dated 10/04/2019.

AT: Gloucester South West Bypass (GSWB) Llanthony Road 
Gloucester Gloucestershire

APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/0070/GLR3MJ.
DEADLINE FOR COMMENTS: 11th February 2021

Anyone wishing to view the application, plans and other documents 
submitted may view them online at www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
planningonline or by prior appointment at Gloucestershire County 
Council, Shire Hall, GL1 2TG 01452 425000 during reception hours 
of 08.30-17.00, Mon-Fri excluding public and bank holidays.
Anyone who wishes to make representations on planning grounds 
to this proposal need to in writing. Comments can be submitted 
online at www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planningonline, by email 
to planningdc@gloucestershire.gov.uk or by letter to Planning 
Development Management at the above address. You should be 
aware that under the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985 all correspondence received will be available for public 
inspection in the Council offices and/or on its website and should not 
contain remarks which might be regarded as offensive or libellous.
This ADVERTISEMENT has been displayed by  
Gloucestershire County Council to publicise that  
the above planning application has been made.

Simon Excell 
Lead Commissioner: Strategic Infrastructure 

 

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 
1972 SECTION 123(1), (2A)

LAND AT BURROWS PLAYING FIELD, 
MOOREND GROVE, CHELTENHAM, 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE, GL53 0EX
DISPOSAL OF OPEN SPACE BY 

WAY OF TENANCY AT WILL
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Cheltenham Borough 
Council intends to dispose of land having an area of 
approximately 71.9 square metres at Burrows Playing Field, 
Moorend Grove, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire (which forms 
part of an open space) by way of the grant of a Tenancy at 
Will for a term of up to 9 months. The intention to grant a 
Tenancy at Will is for the purpose of locating a kiosk for the 
sale of refreshments and for a seating area. 
A plan showing the land edged red can be requested by 
emailing Abigail.marshall@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Objections to the intended disposal must be made in 
writing and addressed to the Council Solicitor, One Legal, 
Tewkesbury Borough Council, Public Services Sector, 
Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury, Gloucestershire GL20 5TT 
(ref. KD/11282) to be received by no later than 18 February 
2021. 
28 January 2021 
Sara J. Freckleton 
Council Solicitor 
One Legal 
Tewkesbury Borough Council 
Public Services Sector 
Gloucester Road 
Tewkesbury 
Gloucestershire GL20 5TT

 

WORCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

PUBLIC NOTICE
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 
(Castle Hill, Kemerton) (Temporary Closure) Order 2021 
Proposed Order: to close that part of Castle Hill from 
its junction with U46026 Wing Lane to its junction with U46025 
Hill Road.
Reason: New/Replacement Electricity Cable by Western Power.
Exemptions: to permit access to any land or premises fronting 
the highway affected where there is no other form of access; 
and to allow the works to be undertaken.
Alternative route: U46025 Hill Road, U46026 Wing Lane and 
vice versa. 
Maximum duration: 18 Months. Anticipated duration: 3 days. 
Commencing: 24 February 2021.
THOMAS POLLOCK, Head of Commercial Law (Legal 
and Governance) Services, County Hall, Spetchley Road, 
Worcester WR5 2NP 28 January 2021

www.worcestershire.gov.uk

 

Goods Vehicle Operator's Licence
KEITH PULHAM trading as KEITH PULHAM BUILDING 
CONTRACTORS LTD of 33 MAUGERSBURY PARK, STOW 
ON THE WOLD, CHELTENHAM, GL54 1DU is applying for 
a licence to use 33 MAUGERSBURY PARK, STOW ON THE 
WOLD, CHELTENHAM, GL54 1DU as an operating centre 
for (1) goods vehicle and (0) trailer.
Owners or occupiers of land (including buildings) 
near the operating centre(s) who believe that their 
use or enjoyment of that land would be affected, 
should make written representations to the Traffic 
Commissioner at Hillcrest House, 386 Harehills Lane, 
Leeds, LS9 6NF stating their reasons, within 21 days 
of this notice. Representors must at the same time 
send a copy of their representations to the applicant 
at the address given at the top of this notice. A Guide 
to Making Representations is available from the Traffic 
Commissioner’s Office.

 

 

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL
The following planning applications can be inspected at 
www.tewkesbury.gov.uk. 
Representations should be received by 18/02/2021. 
Comments will be available for public inspection. 
Tewkesbury 20/01008/LBC, Installation of a through 
fireplace & double sided stove by exposing & renewing the 
existing fireplace, repair surrounding structure & exposing 
& reinstating the adjacent cellar archway. The Heritage 
38A Barton Street. Tirley 21/00018/FUL, Erection of a two 
storey & single storey rear extension. Meadow View Main 
Road. Twyning 21/00057/APP, Construction of 834 sq.m of 
business space (Class E) together with associated 
highway, drainage infrastructure & landscaping. Details 
of layout, scale, appearance & landscaping provided for 
approval. Brockeridge Park Brockeridge Road.

 

GLOUCESTER CITY 
COUNCIL

Notice is hereby given that the 
following application has been 
made to Gloucester City Council. 
The following codes indicate 
the nature of the application: C 
Conservation Area. 21/00046/
FUL 66 Green Lane Demolish 
existing prefabricated concrete 
garage and erect new block and 
render garage with concrete 
interlocking tiled roof on 
trussed rafters (C). Please send 
any representations quoting the 
relevant number either online 
or the above address within 21 
days from the date of this notice 
28.01.2021.

MOYA ELIZABETH HOOD 
(Maiden name: Hayward) 

(Deceased)

Pursuant to the Trustee Act 1925 any 
persons having a claim against or an 
interest in the Estate of the above 
named, late of 22 Lefroy Court, 
Cheltenham GL51 6QA, who died on 
04/08/2019, are required  to  send  
written  particulars thereof to the 
undersigned on or before 06/04/2021, 
after which date the Estate will be 
distributed having regard only to the 
claims and interests of which they have 
had notice.

Elizabeth Frances Hood,  
The London Gazette (15006)  
PO Box 3584, Norwich NR7 7WD. 

WINSOME JOY HATTON 
(Deceased)

Pursuant to the Trustee Act 1925 any 
persons having a claim against or an 
interest in the Estate of the above 
named, late of 1 Stanway Road, 
Cheltenham GL51 6BY, who died on 
21/09/2020, are required  to  send  
written  particulars thereof to the 
undersigned on or before 29/03/2021, 
after which date the Estate will be 
distributed having regard only to the 
claims and interests of which they 
have had notice.

David John Robinson, The London 
Gazette (15463), PO Box 3584, 
Norwich NR7 7WD. 

DAVID JOHN EDWIN PRITCHETT 
(Deceased)

Pursuant to the Trustee Act 1925 any 
persons having a claim against or an 
interest in the Estate of the above named, 
late of New Barn Farm Kilkenny 
Andoversford Cheltenham Glos GL54 
4LN, who died on 20/04/2020, are required  
to  send written particulars thereof to the 
undersigned on or before 29/03/2021, after 
which date the Estate will be distributed 
having regard only to the claims and 
interests of which they have had notice.
Wilmot & Co Solicitors LLP 
38 Castle Street Cirencester  
Gloucestershire GL7 1QH. 

ROLAND HALL (Deceased)
Pursuant to the Trustee Act 1925 any 
persons having a claim against or an 
interest in the Estate of the above named, 
late of Thirlestaine Park Care Home, 
Humphris Place, Off Sandford Road, 
Cheltenham, who died on 20/12/2020, are 
required  to  send  written  particulars thereof 
to the undersigned on or before 29/03/2021, 
after which date the Estate will be distributed 
having regard only to the claims and 
interests of which they have had notice.

VANDERPUMP & SYKES, 
Lough Point, 2 Gladbeck Way, Enfield, 
Middlesex EN2 7JA. 

DOROTHY WILLIAMS (Deceased)

Pursuant to the Trustee Act 1925 any persons 
having a claim against or an interest in the 
Estate of the above named, late of Astell 
House, Overton Park Road, Cheltenham, 
GL50 3BT, who died on 01/07/2020, are 
required  to  send  written  particulars thereof to 
the undersigned on or before 29/03/2021, after 
which date the Estate will be distributed having 
regard only to the claims and interests of which 
they have had notice.

HARRISON CLARK RICKERBYS 
LIMITED,  
Ellenborough House Wellington Street 
Cheltenham GL50 1YD. 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 28, 2021 Gloucestershirelive.co.uk 41Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

 Page 1 of 12  

 

Cheltenham Borough Council   

Cabinet – 16 February 2021 

Budget Monitoring Report 2020/21 – position as at December 2020 

 

Accountable member Councillor Steve Jordan, Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets 

Accountable officer Paul Jones, Executive Director Finance and Assets 

Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All 

Ward(s) affected All 

Key Decision Yes 

Executive summary To update Members on the Council’s current financial position for 2020/21 
based on the monitoring exercise at the end of December 2020. The report 
covers the Council’s revenue, capital and treasury management position. 
The report identifies any known significant variations (minimum £50,000) to 
the 2020/21 COVID-19 recovery revised budget which was approved by 
Council on 16 November 2020. 
 

Recommendations 1. Cabinet note the contents of this report including the key projected 
variances to the COVID-19 recovery revised 2020/21 budget approved 
by Council on 16 November 2020 and the expected delivery of services 
within budget.  

2. Cabinet note that these variances have been incorporated into the 
revised budget 2020/21 for approval by Full Council on 22 February 
2021. 

 

Page 27
Agenda Item 7



 

   

 Page 2 of 12  

 

Financial implications  As detailed throughout this report. 

Contact officer: Gemma Bell, gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk ,  
01242 264124 

Legal implications None specific directly arising from the recommendations. 

Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi,   sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk,     
01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

The Council continues to monitor vacancies and recruitment. All 
recruitment activity decisions are based on a business case outlining the 
impact on the service delivery and/or loss of income generation if the post 
were to remain unoccupied. In addition, the Council also continues to 
monitor its capacity to deliver on key projects.  

Contact officer:   Julie McCarthy 

julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Key elements of the budget are aimed at delivering the corporate 
objectives within the Corporate Business Plan. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None. 

 

1. Background 

1.1. This report provides the monitoring position statement for the financial year 2020/21 against the 
COVID-19 recovery revised budget approved by Council on 16 November 2020. The purpose of this 
report is to notify members of any known significant variations to the revised budgets for 2020/21 and 
highlight any key issues. 

1.2. Regular budget monitoring exercises for services are carried out in liaison with Directors and cost 
centre managers.  This identifies any major variations from the current approved budget that are 
anticipated to occur in the financial year.  The current approved budget is the revised budget for 
2020/21 agreed by Council on 16 November 2020.  Any variations of more than £50,000 to revenue 
budgets are outlined in this report. 
 

2. Net revenue position 

2.1. The table below summarises the net impact of the variances identified at this stage in the financial 
year, projecting the position to the end of the financial year for all budget variances in excess of 
£50,000, details of which are provided in paragraphs 2.2 to 2.13 below. 
 

Significant budget variances  Overspend / 
(Underspend)  

£ 

Para. Ref. 

Saving from Employee costs (65,000)                 2.2 

Page 28

mailto:gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk
mailto:julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk


 

   

 Page 3 of 12  

 

   

Impact of COVID-19   

Additional Expenditure (490,000) 2.3 – 2.7 

Income Losses 410,000 2.8 – 2.14 

Total Impact of COVID-19 (80,000)  

   

Place & Growth Directorate    

Cemetery & Crematorium   60,000 2.15 

Total Place & Growth Directorate 60,000  

   

People & Change Directorate   

Modernisation Programme 75,000 2.16 

Total People & Change Directorate 75,000  

   

Net Impact of other variances less than £50,000 110,000  

   

Total projected overspend for the year 100,000  

   

Contribution from General balances (100,000) 7.1 

   

Total Forecast Outturn -  

   

 
Saving from Employee costs  

2.2. A target saving from employee related costs to be made throughout the Council during the year is 
embedded within individual service budgets, allocated in proportion to existing service salary budgets. 
In the revised budget approved in November 2020, the savings target was reduced by £5.4k from 
£371.70k to £366.3k. An assessment of vacant posts (i.e. staff turnover) and restructures in the first 
three quarters of the year indicate that there will be a likely surplus of £65k against this target for the 
financial year.  This will continue to be monitored during the remainder of the year and the final position 
will be reported at service level as part of the Outturn report. 

 
Impact of COVID-19 – Additional Expenditure 

 
2.3. The table below sets out the additional expenditure incurred to the end of December 2020, and 

projected for the full financial year.  

 Actual incurred at 
December 2020 

£m 

Projected full year 
costs 2020/21   

£m  

Public Health - Testing, contact tracing and 
outbreak planning 

0.00 0.00 

Page 29



 

   

 Page 4 of 12  

 

Housing General Fund – homelessness and 
rough sleeping 

0.231 0.307 

Leisure 0.005 0.055 

Cultural related 0.000 0.000 

Cremation, cemetery and mortuary services 0.119 0.120 

Waste Management 0.320 0.399 

Finance & corporate - ICT & remote working 0.123 0.136 

Shielding / wellbeing hub and food hub 0.185 0.20 

PPE 0.063 0.076 

Lockdown & compliance/ Reopening High Street 
Safely  

0.094 0.170 

Unachieved savings/delayed projects 0.194 0.250 

Other 0.00 0.00 

Sub-total 1.334 1.713 

Less Government grant received   (tranches 2 – 
4) 

(1.535) (1.535) 

Less Specific Lockdown/Reopening High Street 
grants received 

0.00 (0.158) 

Less Housing Benefit recovered (0.133) (0.177) 

Total cost to the Council (0.344) (0.157) 

 
2.4. The gross additional costs incurred as a result of the pandemic are £1.334m for the period to 

December 2020, with an estimated total spend of £1.713m for the financial year. The estimated costs 
assume continued expenditure throughout the last quarter of 2020/21 because of the further 
restrictions announced on 30 December 2020 and announcement that these will be in place until 8 
March 2021 at the earliest.  

2.5. This projected outturn is compared to the revised budget agreed in November 2020 in the table below.  

 Projected 
full year 
costs – 
September 
2020 

£m 

Projected 
full year 
costs – 
December 
2020 

£m 

Overspend / 
(Underspend) 

£m 

Total gross expenditure  2.049 1.713 (0.336) 

Less Government grant received   (tranches 2 
– 4) 

(1.536) (1.535) 0.001 

Less Specific Lockdown/Reopening High 
Street grants received 

0.00 (0.158) (0.158) 

Less Housing Benefit recovered (0.180) (0.177) (0.003) 

Total cost to the Council 0.333 (0.157) (0.49) 

 

2.6. When compared to the figures projected based on spend to date for April to September 2020, there 
is now a forecast underspend of £490k against the budget set aside to fund these pressures in 
November 2020. The reason for this is a reduction in the projected estimated cost pressure caused 
by leisure services. In the revised budget, projected additional costs to the Council of directly 
supporting the leisure services in the town in the 2020/21 financial year were £483k. Following the 
agreement of this budget, £223k of COVID-19 expenditure recorded against leisure services has been 

Page 30



 

   

 Page 5 of 12  

 

capitalised as it has been used to enhance the assets in parks and gardens across the town to support 
new and increase existing revenue streams for the Cheltenham Trust.  

2.7. Additional grant income has also been received since the agreement of the revised budget in 
November 2020 as a result of Cheltenham being placed in Tier 4 restrictions on 31 December 2020 
and then a subsequent national lock down on 4 January 2021.  

Impact of COVID-19 – Income Losses 

2.8. The following table shows the actual irrecoverable losses to the end of December 2020, and projected 
for the full financial year.  

  

Irrecoverable 
losses to 
December 

2020  

Projected 
Irrecoverable 

losses for 
the year 
2020/21   

£m £m  

Sales, fees and charges (SFC)     

Off-street car parking 1.940 2.908 

Sponsorship and advertising income 0.190 0.220 

Recreation and sport 0.196 0.273 

Development Control 0.00 0.024 

Cremation, cemetery and mortuary services 0.275 0.266 

Building control 0.102 0.099 

Trade waste 0.157 0.215 

Recycling 0.098 0.075 

Green Waste 0.035 0.032 

Regulatory services 0.105 0.135 

Central services to the public 0.192 0.219 

Other 0.034 0.046 

Sub-total 3.324 4.512 

Less estimated Government compensation (2.217) (2.956) 

Total cost to the Council from lost SFC 1.107 1.556 

  

Commercial Income     

Commercial property rental 0.135 0.180 

Investment income 0.126 0.167 

Sub-total 0.261 0.347 

  

Total Income losses to be incurred by the Council 1.368 1.903 

 

2.9. This projected outturn is compared to the revised budget agreed in November 2020 in the table below.  

 Projected 
Irrecoverable 
losses for 
the year 
2020/21   

Projected 
Irrecoverable 
losses for 
the year 
2020/21   

Overspend / 
(Underspend) 

£m 

Page 31



 

   

 Page 6 of 12  

 

September 
2020  

£m 

December 
2020  

£m 

Projected irrecoverable losses from SFC 3.496 4.512 1.02 

Less estimated Government compensation (2.216) (2.956) (0.74) 

Projected irrecoverable losses from 
Commercial Income 

0.218 0.347 0.13 

Total projected income losses to be 
incurred by the Council 

1.498 1.903 0.410 

 
2.10. The increase in the projected irrecoverable loss in income between September and December 2020 

of £410k is mainly due to movements in three areas: car parking income, trade waste and commercial 
income.  

2.11. Car parking - There was a loss in car parking income of £1.940m for April to December 2020, 
equivalent to 57% of the profiled budget for the nine month period. This compares to a 66% loss 
against the profiled budget for the first six months of the year, reflecting the recovery of activity in the 
run up to Christmas. The projected loss for the year has increased from £2.115m to £2.908m between 
September and December 2020. The increase is because the profile for January to March assumes 
that an additional £968k of income will be lost from car parking, which is equivalent to 87% of the 
remaining budget for 2020/21. This reflects the Government announcement that lock down measures 
will remain in place until early March 2020.  

2.12. Following the events of the last twelve months, there is a risk that this income may not recover to past 
levels, as consumer and working behaviours may change permanently, as more people continue to 
work and shop from home in the future.  Assuming an estimated income level of 80% of budget 
continues going forward, there will be a loss of circa £900k in 2021/22 and beyond, creating a shortfall 
in the medium term financial strategy which will need to be met from new income streams or reduced 
spending.   

2.13. Trade Waste – The projected loss of income from trade waste in 2020/21 has increased from £108k 
to £215k. In the revised budget from November, it was assumed that normal income levels would 
begin to be achieved from October onwards. Due to the lockdown and restrictions since September, 
no income was achieved between November and December and the forecast assumes that trade 
will return to 75% of the budget profile from February onwards.  

2.14. Commercial Income – The November budget assumed that projected losses from commercial 
property income would be £50k for 2020/21. In the period April to December 2020, £135k of income 
had been lost. The revised projection assumes that losses will continue at the same rate through the 
last quarter of the year. The Central Government compensation scheme does not include commercial 
income generated from investments and commercial property.  

 
Cemetery & Crematorium  
 

2.15. It is anticipated that the Cemetery and Crematorium budget will report a £60k variance by the end of 
the 2020/21 financial year. This is due to additional expenditure on premises, supplies and services 
and fluctuations in income generated against the base budget following the opening of the new 
crematorium in March 2019. Due to the opening of the new site and the impact of COVID-19 on both 
income and expenditure related to the Crematorium, it has been difficult to determine what base 
budget the service requires in the longer term. Work is ongoing with the Bereavement Services 
Manager to review ongoing spend requirements and identify income generating opportunities for the 
service to build longer term confidence in the base budget.  

 

Page 32



 

   

 Page 7 of 12  

 

 Modernisation Programme 
 
2.16.   It is anticipated that the Modernisation Programme budget will report a £75k variance by the end of 

the 2020/21 financial year. This is because the pace of the programme has increased in 2020/21 and 
costs have been incurred to progress the technology work stream and drive forward organisational 
design and development work. The Finance team are currently working closely with the team to review 
the profiling of spend and budget for the programme across the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  
 

3. Treasury Management 

3.1. Borrowing Costs are in line with the revised budget. This includes both short term (temporary 
borrowing), long term and brokerage costs. 

 
3.2. Investments as of 31 December 2020 are forecast to come in on budget based on performance so 

far.  

 

4. Capital  

   The Capital Programme  

4.1. A monitoring exercise has been carried out to ensure that revised capital programme, approved by 
Council on 16 November 2020, are being delivered as planned within allocated capital budgets, some 
of which are timetabled to straddle two or more financial years.  
 

4.2. There are no significant variance against any current capital programmes or projects with the 
exception of the £223k of costs funded by the Council to enhance the green space assets operated 
by the Cheltenham Trust which have been capitalised since November 2020. The additional capital 
spend will be funded within the existing capital programme. 

 
4.3. The full four year capital programme, including the forecast spend in 2020/21 will be presented as part 

of the Medium Term Financial Stategy to February Council.  
 
 

5. Council tax and Business rates collection 

5.1. The monitoring report for the collection of council tax and business rates (NNDR) income is shown in 
Appendix 2. This shows the position at the end of December 2020 and the projected outturn for 
2020/21. 
 

6. Sundry debt collection 

6.1. The monitoring of aged sundry debts and recovery is shown at Appendix 3.  
 
 

7. Conclusion 

7.1. The impact on the general fund of the variances reported above is that there is a forecast net 
overspend against the budget of £100,000 for 2020/21. This will be met from a contribution from 
General Fund balances at year end.  

 
7.2. The continued impact of the changes in government funding arrangements and the economic climate 

present particular concerns for the Council’s budgets. It is clearly important to ensure that budgets 
continue to be closely monitored over the coming months with a view to taking action at a future date, 
if necessary, in order to ensure that the Council delivers services within budget. 

 

Page 33



 

   

 Page 8 of 12  

 

7.3. It will be for Cabinet and Council to decide in June 2021, when the financial outturn is finalised, how 
to apply any potential savings. However it is recommended that any underspend identified on outturn 
be transferred firstly to the Budget Deficit (Support) Reserve and secondly to support general 
balances, bearing in mind the need to keep the level of reserves robust and the uncertainty 
surrounding future budget funding gaps, as outlined in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy.   
 

8. Consultation 

8.1. The work undertaken to produce this report has involved consultation with a wide number of services 
and cost centre managers. 

 

Report author  Contact officer: Gemma Bell   
gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk,   01242 264124 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 

2. Council Tax and NNDR collection to 31 December 2020 

3. Aged Debt Report as at 31 December 2020 

Background information 1. Section 25 Report – Council 17 February 2020 

2. Final Budget Proposal for 2020/21 – Council 17 February 2020 

3. COVID-19 Recovery Revised Budget 2020/21 – Council 16 
November 2020 

Page 34



 

   

December 2020 Monitoring Report Page 9 of 12 Last updated 04 February 2021 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk ref. Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
Officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

CR3 If the Council is unable 
to come up with long 
term solutions which 
close the gap in the 
medium term financial 
strategy then it will find 
it increasingly difficult to 
prepare budgets year 
on year without making 
unplanned cuts in 
service provision. 

Cabinet 01/09/2010 5 3 15 Reduce The budget strategy 
projection includes 
‘targets’ for work 
streams to close the 
funding gap which 
aligns with the 
council’s corporate 
priorities.   

Ongoing ED Finance and 
Assets 

01/09/2010 

CR105 If the Budget Strategy 
(Support) Reserve is 
not suitably resourced 
insufficient reserves will 
be available to cover 
anticipated future 
deficits resulting in the 
use of General 
Balances which will 
consequently fall below 
the minimum required 
level as recommended 
by the Section 151 
Officer in the council’s 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 

ED 
Finance 
and 
Assets 

01/04/2016 5 4 20 Reduce The MTFS is clear 
about the need to 
enhance reserves 
and identifies a 
required reserves 
strategy for managing 
this issue.  In 
preparing the budget 
for 2020/21 and in 
ongoing budget 
monitoring, 
consideration will 
continue to be given 
to the use of 
fortuitous windfalls 
and potential future 
under spends with a 
view to strengthening 
reserves whenever 
possible.   

Ongoing ED Finance and 
Assets 

01/04/2016 

1.02 If income streams from 
the introduction of the 
business rates retention 
scheme in April 2013 
are impacted by the 

ED 
Finance 
and 
Assets 

14/09/12 5 4 20 Accept 
& 
Monitor 

The Council joined 
the Gloucestershire 
pool to share the risk 
of fluctuations in 
business rates 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 

ED Finance and 
Assets 

14/09/12 

P
age 35



 

   

December 2020 Monitoring Report Page 10 of 12 Last updated 04 February 2021 

 

loss of major business 
and the constrained 
ability to grow the 
business rates in the 
town then the MTFS 
budget gap may 
increase. 

revenues retained by 
the Council.   
 
The Gloucestershire 
S151 Officers 
continue to monitor 
business rates 
income projections 
and the performance 
and membership of 
the pool / pilot.  
 
Work with members 
and Gloucestershire 
LEP to ensure 
Cheltenham grows its 
business rate base. 
 
 

 
 
 

1.03 If the robustness of the 
income proposals is not 
sound then there is a 
risk that the income 
identified within the 
budget will not 
materialise during the 
course of the year. 

ED 
Finance 
and 
Assets 

15/12/10 4 4 16 Reduce Robust forecasting is 
applied in preparing 
budget targets taking 
into account previous 
income targets, 
collection rates and 
prevailing economic 
conditions. 
Professional 
judgement is used in 
the setting / delivery 
of income targets. 
Greater focus on cost 
control and income 
generation will be 
prioritised to mitigate 
the risk of income 
fluctuations. 

Ongoing ED Finance and 
Assets 

15/12/10 

1.07 If the assumptions 
around government 
support, business rates 
income, impact of 
changes to council tax 

ED 
Finance 
and 
Assets 

13/12/10 5 3 15 Reduce Work with Publica 
and countywide 
CFO’s to monitor 
changes to local 
government financing 

Ongoing ED Finance and 
Assets 

13/12/10 

P
age 36



 

   

December 2020 Monitoring Report Page 11 of 12 Last updated 04 February 2021 

 

discounts prove to be 
incorrect, then there is 
likely to be increased 
volatility around future 
funding streams.  

regime including 
responding to 
government 
consultation on 
changes Business 
Rates and the Fair 
Funding review. The 
assumptions 
regarding government 
support have been 
mitigated to a certain 
extent by the 
acceptance of a multi-
year settlement 
agreement. 

New 

corporate 

risk 

If government support 
to compensate this 
Council for the impact 
of COVID-19 is 
insufficient, greater 
reliance will be placed 
on the use of reserves, 
service reduction and 
asset sales.  

ED 
Finance 
and 
Assets 

 5 3 15 Reduce The Council will 
continue to lobby for 
additional resource, 
as promised by 
Central Government 
from the outset of the 
pandemic.  
 
Work programmes 
are underway to 
review service 
provision, capital 
programmes and 
rationalisation of 
assets. 

Ongoing ED Finance and 
Assets 

To be 
added to 
the risk 
register 

 
Guidance 
Types of risks could include the following: 

 Potential reputation risks from the decision in terms of bad publicity, impact on the community or on partners;  

 Financial risks associated with the decision; 

 Political risks that the decision might not have cross-party support; 

 Environmental risks associated with the decision; 

 Potential adverse equality impacts from the decision; 

 Capacity risks in terms of the ability of the organisation to ensure the effective delivery of the decision 

 Legal risks arising from the decision 
Remember to highlight risks which may impact on the strategy and actions which are being followed to deliver the objectives, so that members can identify the 

P
age 37



 

   

December 2020 Monitoring Report Page 12 of 12 Last updated 04 February 2021 

 

need to review objectives, options and decisions on a timely basis should these risks arise. 
 
Risk ref 
If the risk is already recorded, note either the corporate risk register or TEN reference 
 
Risk Description 
Please use “If xx happens then xx will be the consequence” (cause and effect). For example “If the council’s business continuity planning does not deliver 
effective responses to the predicted flu pandemic then council services will be significantly impacted.”    
 
Risk owner 
Please identify the lead officer who has identified the risk and will be responsible for it.  
 
Risk score 
Impact on a scale from 1 to 4 multiplied by likelihood on a scale from 1 to 6. Please see risk scorecard for more information on how to score a risk 
 
Control 
Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
Action 
There are usually things the council can do to reduce either the likelihood or impact of the risk.  Controls may already be in place, such as budget monitoring 
or new controls or actions may also be needed. 
 
Responsible officer 
Please identify the lead officer who will be responsible for the action to control the risk. 
For further guidance, please refer to the risk management policy 
 
Transferred to risk register 
Please ensure that the risk is transferred to a live risk register. This could be a team, divisional or corporate risk register depending on the nature of the risk 
and what level of objective it is impacting on.  

P
age 38

file:///C:/Users/Documents%20and%20Settings/Sarah.Didcote/Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/2012-2013/Special%20Projects/Democratic%20Services/shared%20data/Corporate/Risk/Risk%20Management%20Policy/Final%20V%20Scorecard%20-%20Feb%2009.doc
file:///C:/Users/Documents%20and%20Settings/Sarah.Didcote/Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/2012-2013/Special%20Projects/Democratic%20Services/shared%20data/Corporate/Risk/Risk%20Management%20Policy/Final%20V%20Risk%20management%20policy%2025.02.09.doc


Council Tax and Business Rates

Collection Rates 2020-21

Appendix 

Current Year Charges - 2020/21

Monitoring Period  % Collected at 31.12.2020 Original Target 31.12.2020 Revised Target 31.12.2020 2020/21 Original Yearend Target 2020/21 Revised YearendTarget

84.74% 85.52% 84.80% 98.20% 97.40%

Comparison with 2019/20 As at 31.12.2019 % Collected 31.03.2020

85.51% 97.88%

Previous Years Charges Outstanding in 2020/21 

Monitoring Period Amount outstanding at 31.12.2020 Original Target 31.12.2020 Revised Target 31.12.2020 2020/21 Original Yearend Target 2020/21 Revised YearendTarget

£2,079,840 £1,860,000 £2,040,000 £1,680,000 £1,880,000

Comparison with 2019/20 As at 31.12.2019 Amount o/s 31.03.2020

£1,504,271 £1,338,263

Current Year Charges - 2020/21

Monitoring Period  % Collected at 31.12.2020 Original Target 31.12.2020 Revised Target 31.12.2020 2020/21 Original Yearend Target 2020/21 Revised YearendTarget

77.58% 84.00% 78.20% 98.80% 91.80%

Comparison with 2019/20 31.12.2019 % Collected 31.03.2020

84.00% 98.85%

Previous Year Arrears Outstanding in 2020/21

Monitoring Period Amount outstanding at 31.12.2020 Original Target 31.12.2020 Revised Target 31.12.2020 2020/21 Original Yearend Target 2020/21 Revised YearendTarget

£1,022,456 £440,000 £800,000 £370,000 £800,000

Comparison with 2019/20 Amount outstanding  at 31.12.2019 Amount outstanding at 31.03.2020

£445,745 £378,415

TThe arrears collection targets for 2020/21  were revised  due to the impact of the 

Coronavirus pandemic.  Although collection has improved slightly the arrears 

outstanding  for  December have not  reduced to the revised target.We are working 

with business rate payers struggling to pay and will continue to monitor this closely .

The arrears collection targets for 2020/21  were revised  due to the impact of the 

Coronavirus pandemic.  Although collection has improved slightly the arrears 

outstanding  for  December have not reduced to the revised target .  We are 

working with any council tax payers struggling to pay and will continue to monitor 

this closely .

Council Tax  2020/21

 Collection targets for 2020/21  were revised  due to the impact of the Coronavirus 

pandemic.  Although collection has improved slightly the actual collection rate for  

December is  below the revised  target. We are working with council tax payers 

struggling to pay and will continue to monitor this closely .

Business Rates  2020/21

 Collection targets for 2020/21  were revised  due to the impact of the Coronavirus 

pandemic.  Although collection has improved slightly the actual collection rate for  

December is  below the revised  target. We are working with business rate payers 

struggling to pay and will continue to monitor this closely .

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Cheltenham Borough Council: Aged Debt Report - as at 31/12/2020

CostC CostC (T)

 No. 

Outstanding 

Invoices 

 Value of Invoices 

in Payment Plans 

 Value of 

Invoices with 

Halted 

Recovery * 

 Value of 

Invoices with 

Legal 

 Value of 

Invoices 

awaiting 

Credit Notes 

** 

 Value of 

Invoices for 

Write Off **** 

 Customer Credits 

*** Not Due 0-30 1-3 Mths 3-6 Mths 6 mth - 1 Yr 1 - 2 Yrs 2 Yrs+ Total

ESR001 Total Highways Agency Verges & Trees 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      66,298.55£           -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  66,298.55£                

OPS001 Total Parks & Gardens Operations 15 17,864.91£           39,190.77£      -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      35.33£                  -£                   102.00£            1,235.60£        -£                  -£                  58,428.61£                

OPS002 Total Sports & Open Spaces Operations 5 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      5,202.37£             -£                   750.00£            101.59£            -£                  -£                  6,053.96£                  

OPS004 Total Allotments 421 67.09£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  1.52£                -£                        -£                      25,282.61£           -£                   -£                   521.66£            -£                  91.79£              25,964.67£                

CCM001 Total Cemetery, Crematorium and Churchyards 156 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  35.00-£                    39,727.00£          91,481.00£           13,104.02£       5,926.00£         7,991.00£        -£                  -£                  158,194.02£              

SPP002 Total Community Alarms 902 26,972.80£           535.42£           -£                  87.18£              58.22-£              -£                        172.80£                214.80£                14.53£              14.53£              761.37£            -£                  -£                  28,715.21£                

SUP005 Total ICT 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   86,354.40£      -£                  -£                  86,354.40£                

TOU002 Total Tourist/Visitor Information Centre 3 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  10.00£              -£                        -£                      -£                       10,654.00£       -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  10,664.00£                

ADB101 Total Cheltenham Municipal Offices 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      24,777.68£           -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  24,777.68£                

ADB103 Total Cheltenham Depot 4 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  12.48£              -£                        -£                      57,358.50£           -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  57,370.98£                

ADB104 Total Miscellaneous Operational Properties 46 3,744.63£             50.00£              1,904.11£        -£                  -£                  -£                        4,823.26£            11,018.25£           1,780.44£         2,202.79£         2,964.02£        -£                  -£                  28,487.50£                

FIE040 Total

Income and Expenditure on Investment 

Properties and Changes in Their Fair Value 27 27,223.94£           200,158.00£    390.00£           -£                  -£                  908.32-£                  -£                      299,963.43£        1,380.10£         46,644.32£       1,800.00£        120.00£           -£                  576,771.47£              

NDC001 Total Non Distributed Costs 3 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      4,037.50£             -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  4,037.50£                  

SUP025 Total Property Services 3 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       6,746.00£         6,396.00£         -£                  -£                  -£                  13,142.00£                

SUP040 Total Built Environment 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      800.00£                -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  800.00£                      

BUC001 Total Building Control - Fee Earning Work 8 -£                       -£                  -£                  10.00£              -£                  -£                        -£                      1,263.60£             1,428.00£         892.00£            120.00£            -£                  -£                  3,713.60£                  

HBP001 Total Rent Allowances 1 185.36£                 -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  185.36£                      

HLD165 Total COVID Grants 3 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        6,334.00£            -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  6,334.00£                  

LTC011 Total NNDR Collection 2 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   30,000.00£       -£                  -£                  -£                  30,000.00£                

LTC111 Total Business Improvement District Administration 3 -£                       593.87£           -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       4,508.92£         -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  5,102.79£                  

RYC008 Total Bulking Facility 25 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      139,497.21£        89,845.89£       61,426.01£       -£                  -£                  -£                  290,769.11£              

TRW001 Total Trade Waste 641 70,909.16£           33,680.02£      777.76£           -£                  351.14£           8,753.83-£               -£                      45,532.65£           261.09£            5,665.46£         7,760.57£        1,414.85£        -£                  157,598.87£              

REG002 Total Licensing 123 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        2,138.00£            3,852.93£             14,466.40£       3,185.08£         4,478.90£        -£                  -£                  28,121.31£                

HOS004 Total Housing Standards 9 337.50£                 602.70£           1,282.80£        -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  2,223.00£                  

REG003 Total Animal Control 1 -£                       100.57£           -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  100.57£                      

REG018 Total Pest Control 8 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        155.00£                213.33£                -£                   315.00£            325.00£            -£                  -£                  1,008.33£                  

STC011 Total Abandoned Vehicles 5 -£                       -£                  932.00£           -£                  96.00£              -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  1,028.00£                  

HLD170 Total Cheltenham Trust Intercompany Account 5 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       4,392.38£         10,383.19£       41,297.06£      7,490.71£        -£                  63,563.34£                

PUT101 Total Royal Well Bus Node 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   4,671.36£        -£                  -£                  4,671.36£                  

HOM002 Total Homelessness Grants 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      1,551.31£             -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  1,551.31£                  

BAL100 Total General Fund Balance Sheet 35 -£                       -£                  3,391.00£        -£                  98.73£              21,299.00-£            -£                      13,470.96£           -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  4,338.31-£                  

HLD110 Total Prestbury Parish Council Salaries 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      13,273.77£           -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  13,273.77£                

SUP010 Total Internal Audit 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       4,304.40£         -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  4,304.40£                  

SUP106 Total Publica Business Support Contract 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  1,245.00-£               -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  1,245.00-£                  

TGI040 Total Capital Grants and Contributions Receivable 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        250,000.00£        -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  250,000.00£              

COM101 Total Oakley Resource Centre 11 110.00£                 -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      23,414.58£           6,250.00£         -£                   440.00£            -£                  -£                  30,214.58£                

COM103 Total St.  Margaret's Hall 1 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        202.50£                -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  202.50£                      

GBD001 Total Community Welfare Grants 2 -£                       -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   300.00£            300.00£           -£                  600.00£                      

REG001 Total Environmental Health General 11 2,935.00£             -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      296.00£                226.00£            1,184.40£         -£                  -£                  -£                  4,641.40£                  
PUT102 Total Shopmobility 1 -£                       -£                  204.00£           -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  204.00£                      

Grand Total 2490 150,350.39£         274,911.35£    8,881.67£        97.18£             511.65£           32,241.15-£            303,552.56£        828,836.36£        159,362.17£    175,086.78£    161,122.53£    9,325.56£        91.79£             2,039,888.84£           

Prior Month Total 1928 £106,997.53 £254,460.99 £8,901.67 £1,658.31 £494.45 -£26,960.52 £190,514.32 £284,373.11 £253,605.85 £33,531.16 £178,149.21 £8,269.50 £0.00 £1,293,995.58

CostC CostC (T)

 No. 

Outstanding 

Invoices 

 Value of Invoices 

in Payment Plans 

 Value of 

Invoices with 

Halted 

Recovery * 

 Value of 

Invoices with 

Legal 

 Value of 

Invoices 

awaiting 

Credit Notes 

** 

 Value of 

Invoices for 

Write Off **** 

 Customer Credits 

*** Not Due 0-30 1-3 Mths 3-6 Mths 6 mth - 1 Yr 1 - 2 Yrs 2 Yrs+ Total

HRA100 Total Repairs and Maintenance 49 17,338.39£           -£                  193.88£           -£                  216.50£           -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   8.00£                -£                  -£                  17,756.77£                

HRA221 Total Service Charges to Leaseholders 44 21,913.50£           -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        -£                      -£                       -£                   -£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  21,913.50£                
HRA210 Total Non-dwelling Rents 31 20.00£                   -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                  -£                        3,095.00£            23,015.61£           833.34£            9,867.50£         10,319.74£      -£                  -£                  47,151.19£                

Grand Total 124 39,271.89£           -£                  193.88£           -£                  216.50£           -£                        3,095.00£            23,015.61£           833.34£            9,867.50£         10,327.74£      -£                  -£                  86,821.46£                

Prior Month Total 118 £41,084.24 -£                  £193.88 -£                  £216.50 -£                        £1,291.67 £2,334.17 £10,465.56 £10,970.02 £6,816.74 -£                  -£                  £73,372.78

Grand Total 2614 189622.28 274911.35 9,075.55£        97.18 728.15 -32241.15 306647.56 851851.97 160195.51 184954.28 171450.27 9325.56 91.79 2126710.3

Prior Report Grand Total 2046 148,081.77           254,460.99      9,095.55          £1,658.31 710.95              26,960.52-               191,805.99          286,707.28           264,071.41       44,501.18         184,965.95      8,269.50          -                    1,367,368.36             

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 Review of Hackney Carriage Fares
	2021_02_16_Review of Hackney Carriage Fares_appendix 2_proposed revised fare card

	6 Kiosk opportunities - consideration of objections
	2021_02_16_Kiosk opportunities_appendix 2_copy of s123 notice

	7 Budget Monitoring Report 2020/21 - position as at December 2020
	2021_02_16_Quarterly Budget Monitoring_appendix 2_council tax and NNDR collection
	2021_02_16_Quarterly Budget Monitoring_appendix 3_aged debt report


